1				
2				
3				
4				
5				
6				
7				
8	BEFORE BOARD OF BU			
9	BOARD OF PHARMACY DEPARTMENT OF CONSUMER AFFAIRS			
10	STATE OF CALIFORNIA			
11				
12	In the Matter of the Accusation Against:	Case No. 7708		
13	JEFFREY MARCUS SIBAYAN 7621 Muschetto Ct.	DEFAULT DECISION AND ORDER		
14	Citrus Heights, CA 95621	[Gov. Code, §11520]		
15	Pharmacy Technician license No. TCH 174379			
16	Respondent.			
17		•		
18	FINDINGS (	OF FACT		
19	1. On or about February 19, 2024, Compl	ainant Anne Sodergren, in her official capacity		
20	as the Executive Officer of the Board of Pharmacy, Department of Consumer Affairs (Board),			
21	filed Accusation No. 7708 against Jeffrey Marcus Sibayan (Respondent) before the Board of			
22	Pharmacy. (Accusation attached as Exhibit A.)			
23	2. On or about September 20, 2019, the B	oard issued Pharmacy Technician license No.		
24	TCH 174379 to Respondent. The Pharmacy Techn	ician license expired on January 31, 2023, and		
25	has not been renewed.			
26	3. On or about February 22, 2024, Respon	ndent was served by Certified and First Class		
27	Mail copies of the Accusation No. 7708, Statement to Respondent, Notice of Defense, Request			
28	for Discovery, and Discovery Statutes (Governmen	t Code sections 11507.5, 11507.6, and		
	1			

The agency has jurisdiction to adjudicate this case by default.

2.

28

- 3. The Board of Pharmacy is authorized to revoke Respondent's Pharmacy Technician's license based upon the following violations alleged in the Accusation which are supported by the evidence contained in the Default Decision Investigatory Evidence Packet in this case:
  - a. A violation of Code sections 490 and 4301 subdivision (l), in that on or about July 31,
     2023, Respondent was convicted of a violation of Vehicle Code section 23152
     subdivision (f), Driving a vehicle while under the influence of any drug;
  - b. A violation of Code section 4301 subdivision (h) in that on or about September 27, 2022, Respondent administered to himself and used any controlled substance or any dangerous drug, including methadone, fentanyl, oxycodone, alprazolam, diazepam, lorazepam, nordiazepam, and temazepam, to the extent or in a manner as to be dangerous or injurious to himself and to others; and
  - c. A violation of Code section 4060 and 4301 subdivision (j) in that on or about July 23, 2023, Respondent possessed Alprazolam, also known as Xanax, a controlled substance, without a valid prescription.

## **ORDER**

IT IS SO ORDERED that Pharmacy Technician license No. TCH 174379, issued to Respondent Jeffrey Marcus Sibayan, is revoked.

Pursuant to Government Code section 11520, subdivision (c), Respondent may serve a written motion requesting that the Decision be vacated and stating the grounds relied on within seven (7) days after service of the Decision on Respondent. The agency in its discretion may vacate the Decision and grant a hearing on a showing of good cause, as defined in the statute.

This Decision shall become effective at 5:00 p.m. on November 6, 2024.

It is so ORDERED on October 7, 2024.

FOR THE BOARD OF PHARMACY DEPARTMENT OF CONSUMER AFFAIRS STATE OF CALIFORNIA

Ву

Seung W. Oh, Pharm.D., Board President

## Exhibit A

Accusation

1	ROB BONTA		
2	Attorney General of California ANDREW M. STEINHEIMER Supervising Deputy Attorney Congrel		
3	Supervising Deputy Attorney General KEVIN W. BELL Deputy Attorney General State Bar No. 192063 1300 I Street, Suite 125 P.O. Box 944255 Sacramento, CA 94244-2550 Telephone: (916) 210-7511 Facsimile: (916) 327-8643 E-mail: Kevin.Bell@doj.ca.gov Attorneys for Complainant		
4			
5			
6			
7			
8	Thiorneys for complained		
9	BEFORE THE		
10 11	BOARD OF PHARMACY DEPARTMENT OF CONSUMER AFFAIRS STATE OF CALIFORNIA		
12			
13	In the Matter of the Accusation Against:	Case No. 7708	
14 15	JEFFREY MARCUS SIBAYAN 7621 Muschetto Ct. Citrus Heights, CA 95621	ACCUSATION	
16	Pharmacy Technician No. TCH 174379		
17	Respondent.		
18			
19	PART	<u> FIES</u>	
20	1. Anne Sodergren (Complainant) brings	s this Accusation solely in her official capacity	
21	as the Executive Officer of the Board of Pharmacy , Department of Consumer Affairs.		
22	2. On or about September 20, 2019, the Board of Pharmacy issued Pharmacy Technician		
23	Number TCH 174379 to Jeffrey Marcus Sibayan (Respondent). The Pharmacy Technician		
24	expired on January 31, 2023, and has not been renewed.		
25	JURISDICTION		
26	3. This Accusation is brought before the Board of Pharmacy (Board), under the		
27	authority of the following laws. All section references are to the Business and Professions Code		
28	(Code) unless otherwise indicated.		
		1	

wholesaler, pharmacy, pharmacist, physician, podiatrist, dentist, optometrist,

veterinarian, naturopathic doctor, certified nurse-midwife, nurse practitioner, or

28

1	physician assistant, when in stock in containers correctly labeled with the name and address of the supplier or producer.
2	
3	10. Section 4301 of the Code states:
4 5	The board shall take action against any holder of a license who is guilty of unprofessional conduct or whose license has been issued by mistake. Unprofessional conduct shall include, but is not limited to, any of the following:
_	
<ul><li>6</li><li>7</li></ul>	(h) The administering to oneself, of any controlled substance, or the use of any dangerous drug or of alcoholic beverages to the extent or in a manner as to be
8	dangerous or injurious to oneself, to a person holding a license under this chapter, or to any other person or to the public, or to the extent that the use impairs the ability of the person to conduct with safety to the public the practice authorized by the license.
9	•••
10	(j) The violation of any of the statutes of this state, of any other state, or of the United States regulating controlled substances and dangerous drugs.
11	· · ·
12	(l) The conviction of a crime substantially related to the qualifications, functions, and duties of a licensee under this chapter. The record of conviction of a
13 14	violation of Chapter 13 (commencing with Section 801) of Title 21 of the United States Code regulating controlled substances or of a violation of the statutes of this state regulating controlled substances or dangerous drugs shall be conclusive
15	evidence of unprofessional conduct. In all other cases, the record of conviction shall be conclusive evidence only of the fact that the conviction occurred. The board may
16	inquire into the circumstances surrounding the commission of the crime, in order to fix the degree of discipline or, in the case of a conviction not involving controlled substances or dangerous drugs, to determine if the conviction is of an offense
17 18	substantially related to the qualifications, functions, and duties of a licensee under this chapter. A plea or verdict of guilty or a conviction following a plea of nolo contendere is deemed to be a conviction within the meaning of this provision.
19	<u>COSTS</u>
20	11. Section 125.3 of the Code states, in pertinent part, that the Board may request the
21	administrative law judge to direct a licentiate found to have committed a violation or violations of
22	the licensing act to pay a sum not to exceed the reasonable costs of the investigation and
23	enforcement of the case.
24	<u>DEFINITIONS</u>
25	12. <b>Methadone</b> is a synthetic opioid that is used to treat chronic pain. It is a Schedule II
26	Controlled Substance and is a dangerous drug.
27	13. <b>Fentanyl</b> is a potent synthetic opioid that is used primarily as an analgesic and as a
28	sedative. It is a Schedule II Controlled Substance and is a dangerous drug.
-	

- 14. **Oxycodone** is a semi-synthetic opioid that is used medically for treatment of moderate to severe pain. It is a Schedule II Controlled Substance and is a dangerous drug.
- 15. **Alprazolam**, also known as *Xanax*, is a fast-acting, potent tranquilizer of moderate duration, most commonly used in management of anxiety disorders. It is a Schedule IV Controlled Substance and is a dangerous drug.
- 16. **Diazepam**, also known as *Valium*, is a medicine of the benzodiazepine family. It is commonly used to treat a range of conditions, including anxiety, muscle spasms, insomnia, and restless legs syndrome. It is a Schedule IV Controlled Substance and is a dangerous drug.
- 17. **Lorazepam**, also known as Ativan, is a medicine of the benzodiazepine family. It is used to treat anxiety. It is a Schedule IV Controlled Substance and is a dangerous drug.
- 18. **Nordiazepam** is a Benzodiazepine derivative that is used as a sedative and to treat anxiety. It is a Schedule IV Controlled Substance and is a dangerous drug.
- 19. **Temazepam** is a Benzodiazepine derivative that is used to treat severe or debilitating insomnia. It is a Schedule IV Controlled Substance and is a dangerous drug.

## FACTUAL ALLEGATIONS

- 20. On September 27, 2022, Defendant Sibayan was arrested for driving under the influence of drugs, as well as possession of prescription medication without a prescription. A blood sample taken from Defendant Sibayan at the time of his arrest confirmed the presence of numerous controlled substances and prescriptions medications, including methadone, fentanyl, oxycodone, alprazolam, diazepam, lorazepam, nordiazepam, and temazepam, and the possible presence of oxymorphone. At the time of his arrest, Defendant Sibayan was also found to be in possession of a baggie containing 35 Xanax pills, for which Defendant Sibayan admitted he did not possess a prescription.
- 21. On or about July 31, 2023, in the case entitled *The People of the State of California* vs. *Jefrey Marcus Sibayan*, *Jr.*, Sacramento County Superior Court case no. 22MI020513, Respondent was convicted of a violation of Vehicle Code section 23152 subdivision (f), Driving a vehicle while under the influence of any drug. Respondent was placed on 3 years' probation and ordered to serve 34 days in the county jail.

1	3. Taking such other and	d further action as deemed necessary and proper.
2	0/40/0004	Sodergren,  Digitally signed by Sodergren,  Anne@DCA
3	DATED: <u>2/19/2024</u>	Anne@DCA Date: 2024.02.19 14:02:07 -08'00 ANNE SODERGREN
4		Executive Officer Board of Pharmacy
5		Board of Pharmacy Department of Consumer Affairs State of California
6		Complainant
7		
8	SA2023305350 37646850.docx	
9		
10		
11		
12		
13		
14		
15		
16		
17		
18		
19 20		
20		
22		
23		
24		
25		
26		
27		
28		
20		7
		ı

(JEFFREY MARCUS SIBAYAN) ACCUSATION